

MHRA Device Safety Information

Reference: MDSI2404

Issued: 04 April 2024

Review Date: 04 April 2025

Legency Remedies 0.9% Sodium Chloride Solutions for Irrigation, Inhalation, and Eyewash: risk of microbiological contamination

This is a copy of web content published by the Medicines & Healthcare products Regulatory Agency on 04 April 2024. The original webpage can be accessed <u>here</u>.

Summary

Batches of Legency Remedies Pvt Ltd irrigation, inhalation and eye wash saline products manufactured between April and November 2023 are being recalled due to potential microbiological contamination.

Action

- 1. Direct this notice to all appropriate managers, staff and users
- Review your inventory of 0.9% sodium chloride solutions intended for irrigation, inhalation and eyewash, and determine if any of the batch numbers listed in the <u>FSN</u> are present in your stock.
- 3. Check any clinical equipment packs or first aid kits that might contain any of the 0.9% sodium chloride solutions listed in the <u>FSN</u> and determine if any of the batch numbers listed in the <u>FSN</u> are present in these packs.
- 4. Immediately stop use, quarantine and stop supply of any identified product(s).
- 5. Where possible, contact any customers who have received or may have received the affected product(s) and ask them not to use the product(s) and to return them to the original place of purchase.
- 6. Follow the actions set out in the <u>FSN</u>.
- 7. Report any adverse incidents to your local incident recording system and to <u>Incident Reporting</u> <u>& Investigation Centre (IRIC)</u>
- 8. Alternative sodium chloride 0.9% solution products are readily available for use in irrigation, inhalation and eye wash. Suppliers of these products have been contacted and have confirmed there is adequate supply in the market to support the recall of affected Legency batches.

For information only: actions MHRA has recommended for others

Patients/customers

- a) If you use any 0.9% sodium chloride solution intended for irrigation, inhalation, or eyewash, check if you have any of the affected batches listed in the <u>FSN</u>.
- b) Immediately discontinue the use of any identified batches of products listed in the <u>FSN</u> and promptly return them to the original place of purchase.
- c) If you have concerns regarding your health in connection with this recall, contact a healthcare professional for guidance. Tell them that you have been using a product that has been recalled due to potential contamination with *R. pickettii*.

Distributors:

- a) Send customers copies of the FSN.
- b) Review your inventory of 0.9% sodium chloride solutions and determine if any of the batch numbers listed in the <u>FSN</u> are present in your stock.
- c) Immediately quarantine and stop supply of any identified product(s).
- d) Follow the actions set out in the <u>FSN</u>.

Equipment details

Manufacturer name:	Legency Remedies Pvt Ltd
Device name:	Sodium Chloride Irrigation Solution 0.9% w/v, Sodium Chloride Eye Wash Solution 0.9% w/v and Sodium Chloride Inhalation Solution 0.9% w/v
Product code:	Refer to Attachment 2 in the <u>Field Safety Notice (FSN)</u> for affected batches.
Manufacture dates:	All products manufactured between April and November 2023

Background Information

Potential contamination with Ralstonia pickettii (R. pickettii) has been identified in 0.9% sodium chloride solutions used for irrigation, inhalation and eyewash manufactured by Legency Remedies Pvt Ltd.

R. pickettii is a type of environmental waterborne bacteria that has the potential to contaminate healthcare products. The bacterium has the ability to create and sustain biofilms, which may pose challenges in effectively removing them from indwelling lines and devices utilised for saline solution administration. In individuals with compromised immune systems, R. pickettii can lead to opportunistic infections. It is important to note that cases of R. pickettii in the UK are rare.

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) is currently investigating a cluster of R. pickettii cases. There have also been similar cases reported in Australia. Analysis of the UK and Australian R. pickettii samples show that they are very closely related which suggests they share a common source of infection. The UK and Australian cases have been linked to contaminated saline products that were utilised for irrigation and inhalation purposes in healthcare and care facilities.

Legency Remedies Pvt Ltd has identified through testing that seven batches of 0.9% sodium chloride irrigation solution have not met sterility standards. These batches were removed and disposed of before being sold in the UK. However, following investigation and as a precautionary measure, the company has additionally recalled all 0.9% sodium chloride solutions intended for irrigation, inhalation, and eyewash manufactured between April and November 2023 which could potentially also be contaminated.

FAC406-274, v6

Background Information (continued)

As of 3 April 2024, three cases of R. pickettii have been confirmed in the UK, and a small number of other cases are under investigation. The confirmed infections occurred in individuals who have multiple underlying health conditions and compromised immune systems. R. pickettii was isolated in blood samples and was associated with clinically significant infections in each case. All confirmed cases received treatment and recovered.

These sodium chloride solutions are categorized as medical devices. The products may be sold individually or as components of equipment kits, which vary from aseptic clinical equipment packs to first aid kits intended for non-clinical settings. The manufacturer of these devices has released a <u>FSN</u> to notify all customers of the necessary steps to be taken. The overall risk to the general public is very low.

Enquiries - manufacturer or supplier contact details

Address: Advena Limited, Pure Offices, Plato Close, Tachbrook Park, Warwick. CV34 6WE Email: <u>info@advenamedical.com</u>

Telephone: +44 1926 800153 Address:

Suggested onward distribution (may not include all affected departments)

Anaesthetics, Cardiology, Care home staff, Cosmetic surgery, Critical care, Dentistry, General practice, General surgery, Haematology & oncology, Infection prevention, Obstetrics & gynaecology, Ophthalmology, Orthopaedics, Paediatrics, Pathology, Pharmacy, Physiotherapy & occupational therapy, Radiology, Renal medicine, Theatre practitioners, Urology, Vascular & cardiac surgery, Optometry, Microbiology

Information about IRIC

Incident Reporting & Investigation Centre (IRIC), Facilities Division, NHSScotland Assure NHS National Services Scotland, Tel: 0131 275 7575, email: <u>nss.iric@nhs.scot</u>

Accessibility: Please contact us using the above details if you are blind or have a sight impairment and would like to request this alert in a more suitable format.

IRIC remit: general information about adverse incidents, safety alerts and IRIC's role can be found in <u>CEL 43 (2009)</u>, Safety of Health, Social Care, Estates and Facilities Equipment: NHS Board and Local Authority Responsibilities, issued 30 October 2009.

To find safety alerts: scan the QR code or <u>click this link</u> to visit our website



To report an incident: scan the QR code or <u>click this</u> <u>link to visit our website</u>



NHS National Services Scotland is the common name for the Common Services Agency for the Scottish Health Service <u>https://www.nss.nhs.scot/</u>